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1

Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Is 193 proposed application for zoning change

From: Bob Allen   
Sent: January 28, 2023 11:44 AM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Is 193 proposed application for zoning change 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

As an owner of island 95 on the upper French River I am opposed plan  
to the subdivision as this will make for much more congestion and pollution 
on the river. 
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1

Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Proposed Development File #ZBLA2023/01

From:   
Sent: January 28, 2023 12:01 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Cc:   
Subject: Proposed Development File #ZBLA2023/01 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Dear Ms. Ducharme, 
 
I'm writing to express the strong opposition of my family and I to the proposed 10 lot development on 
Brown's Island. 
 
My family has been spending the summer months on the French River for over 100 years, and we own a 
cottage on Elliot Island.  Our family's long history in the area of course does not give us any more say 
than anyone else about what happens on the French, but it does I think give us some important 
perspective on the character of the community and its dwellings. 
 
The community currently consists of unique dwellings on roomy sites with a natural aesthetic.  The 
Brown Island proposal is inconsistent with those values.  The number of lots already seems too much 
for that island to bear.  Allowing two dwellings for each over‐crowded lot will result in a development 
that is completely out of character for the French.  Change and development are inevitable, and it 
would be hypocritical of us to oppose all construction and development.  But the existing plan is such a 
marked departure from the existing character of the community that it would transform the area into 
something it should not be. 
 
I am also very concerned about the environmental impact of this dense development.  Others will I'm 
sure speak to those issues more eloquently than I.  I add only that I understand that the Blanding turtle 
has been found on Brown Island.  It's a rare turtle listed as threatened or endangered across all of its 
existing habitat, and at a time when climate change and so many other things are affecting our wildlife, 
it would be a shame for this turtle to lose more of its vital habitat to an ill‐conceived development. 
 
Thank you for your time in reading and considering my concerns and opposition to the proposed 
development. 
 
Sarah Allison Mullane Becker   
Elliot Island LLC 
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1

Natasha Liard

To: Melanie Ducharme
Subject: RE: Proposed Dev File #ZBLA2023/01

From:   
Sent: January 29, 2023 10:18 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Proposed Dev File #ZBLA2023/01 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Dear Ms. Ducharme,  
I am a cottage owner on the Upper French River. I co‐own, with my sisters, Island no. WB164A‐ 1, tax roll no. 4852 200 
00111900.0000. Under the family name of Kunkle, Guthrie and presently Bergen, we have stewarded this property, a 
landmark in this part of the provincial park, for more than 100 years, since 1922 and have cherished it. 
 
I am deeply concerned and opposed to the property development on the proposed development File #ZBLA2023/01, a 
rezoning and plan of subdivision for Brown Island 193, to create10 lots which can accommodate up to 2 dwellings per 
lot.  
 
We strongly oppose this application for the following reasons: 

 The proposed density, scale and character of the subdivision is not in keeping with the Upper French River (UFR) 
and appears to be at odds with policies contained in the West Nipissing Official Plan 

 Concern for the cultural heritage landscape, and archaeological values of the UFR being adequately protected, 
conserved or enhanced by the proposed subdivision 

 Concern with the sewage carrying capacity of the Island to accommodate 10 lots and up to 20 dwelling units 
 Impact the proposed subdivision will have on fisheries, wildlife, areas of natural and scientific interest, 

endangered and threatened species, especially considering climate change. 
 Impact the proposed subdivision will have on local and downstream water quality 

Furthermore, if such a development is allowed to proceed it will open a precedent to more developments like this one 
to spread throughout the area and provincial park, opening up pathways to damage the natural ecosystem and 
irrevocably harm what is left of this fragile land. In short we are strongly opposed to this proposal moving forward. 
 
I am aware of the upcoming meeting on January 30, 2023 at 6pm. Please keep me informed of any upcoming meetings 
pertaining to this proposal. Thank you. 
 
Sincerely, 
Lydia Kunkle Bergen 
41 May Street, Boston, Massachusetts, 02130 
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1

Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Brown Island meeting

From:  
Sent: January 29, 2023 9:24 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Brown Island meeting 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Good evening,  
 
On behalf of myself and my parents, Carolyn and Robert Allison, I would like to voice my opinion that I do not think the 
proposal should be granted.  The Upper French River is a Heratige waterway and a provincial park that needs to be 
maintained not exploited.  My family has been coming to the French River since 1907. Over those 100 plus years we 
have strived to keep the French River the beautiful place that it is.  With the introduction of a”subdivision” it leaves the 
river open to light pollution, noise pollution, impact on wildlife especially endangered species, and pollution of the 
waters.  I do not feel it is necessary to populate the river with one house after another.  One of the beauties of the 
French is the open land that is maintained by not having house after house.Please do not allow this proposal. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Jane Allison Calcari 
Marshall Island, Upper FrenchRiver.  
 
 
Sent from the all new AOL app for iOS 
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1

Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Updates

From: Doug Chamberlain   
Sent: January 30, 2023 9:42 AM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Updates 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Hi Melanie  
Please keep me informed about #ZBLA2023/01 
I have a cottage near Browns Island.  
This seems rather intense for the area.  
Doug  
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Rezoning and proposed (seasonal/single detached) residential subdivision for Brown's Island #
193, Bertram Township, West Nipissing

From:  
Sent: January 29, 2023 5:44 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Rezoning and proposed (seasonal/single detached) residential subdivision for Brown's Island #193, Bertram 
Township, West Nipissing 
 
 

Hi, 
 
I would like to voice my opposition to proposed ten lot (seasonal/permanent residential) subdivision and 
rezoning of Brown’s Island #193, Bertram Township.  Please refer to my attached  
 
I own a nearby cottage on Hunter’s Bay ( Bertram Township) for more than 20 years.  I also visited the Upper 
French River as camper for mote than 20 years before owing a cottage. 
 
Please refer to the attached list of concerns. In addition to these concerns 
 
I would also note that the proposed development on Island 93 is directly opposite a group of camping sites on 
the small group of islands in direct line of site, immediately across the channel from Island 193.  
 
This rezoning and proposed (seasonal/single detached) residential subdivision for Brown’s Island #193, Bertram 

Township, West Nipissing will essentially destroy the nature and viability of these camp sites, which I camped on 
with my family prior to owning a cottage, many times. 
 
I would like to be included and informed on the proposed development File #ZBLA2023/01 in future. 

 
Paul Cormier 
Cottage Owner & Past President of the Upper French River Cottagers Association ( UFRCA) 
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1

Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: mime-attachment

 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From:  
Sent: January 28, 2023 2:30 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca>; Leslie Dechaine <dechaine2000@yahoo.ca> 
Subject: mime‐attachment 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
 28, 2023 
 
Island 94 
French River 
West Nipissing 
 
Melanie Ducharme 
Minicipal Clerk/Planner for West Nipissing 
225 Holditch Street, Suite 101 
Sturgeon Falls, P2B 1T1 
 
 
As a cottage land owner in West Nipissing I was appalled to learn of the application for the re zoning and subdivision of 
Brown Island 193. 
 
The impact of the proposed subdivision will have a devastating effect on the entire biosphere, lithosphere and 
hydrosphere of the region.  It has been deemed a protected area for a reason. 
 
I have been using its water for drinking and for recreational use for 72 years.  I hope my grandchildren will be able to do 
so in the future. 
 
I definitely am opposed to the re zoning of this land. 
 
Leslie Dechaine 
dechaine2000@yahoo.ca 
 
Dave Dechaine (husband) 
 
 
Sent from my iPad 
 
 
 
 
Sent from my iPad 
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1

Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Zoning Application ZBLA2023/01 and concurrent subdivision application SUBD2023/01 for Island 
193, Bertram Township, West Nipissing

From:  
Sent: January 29, 2023 5:10 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Cc:   
Subject: Zoning Application ZBLA2023/01 and concurrent subdivision application SUBD2023/01 for Island 193, Bertram 
Township, West Nipissing 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Dear Ms. Ducharme, 

I am the owner of Island 190 on the French River and the executor of the estate of my late mother,
Mrs. Betty England, the estate being the owner of Island 191 on the French River. Please accept this 
letter as my confirmation that I wish to be informed of the decision of the Planning Advisory Committee
in the above-captioned matter which is scheduled to meet tomorrow evening. I will be making every
effort to attend at the meeting. I oppose both of the Applications particularized in the subject line above,
which Applications are before the Planning Advisory Committee tomorrow night. I did intend to file
written submissions prior to the hearing of the Committee but for unforeseeable and unavoidable
reasons was not able to do so in a timely manner. That said, I will bring a written summary of my
submissions should the Committee wish to receive them to assist in their notetaking.  

I trust the foregoing is satisfactory. 

 
 
 

ROBERT ENGLAND 
Partner 
 
Miller Thomson LLP 
Scotia Plaza 
40 King Street West, Suite 5800 
P.O. Box 1011 
Toronto, Ontario  M5H 3S1 
 
 
View my web page 
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1

Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Proposed application for a re zoning and subdivision of Browns Island 193

From:   
Sent: January 29, 2023 8:44 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Proposed application for a re zoning and subdivision of Browns Island 193 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Hello Melanie,  
 
As a property owner on the Upper French River I am writing to express concern/opposition with the Municipality 
regarding the proposed development of Browns island 193. Please include and inform me on the proposed 
development, file #ZBLA2023/01 
 
Attached is a PDF document, Island 193 Planning Application Concerns, expressing specific concerns regarding proposed 
development. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Kathy Hemmerick 
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1

Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Proposed Application for a re zoning and subdivision of Browns Island 193 on MONDAY 
JANUARY 30TH

From:  
Sent: January 30, 2023 9:12 AM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Proposed Application for a re zoning and subdivision of Browns Island 193 on MONDAY JANUARY 30TH 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Dear Ms. Ducharme,  
As approx. 50 year residents of Island 79A in the Upper French River, we would like to register our opposition to the 
proposed subdivision of Browns Island. Unfortunately, we are unable to travel to the zoning meeting in person, but please 
include us among those who strongly oppose the measure. Please protect the unique nature of the French River. 
Thank you, 
 
Nelson and Brigitte Kandel 

-----Original Message----- 
From:  
To:   
Sent: Tue, Jan 24, 2023 3:53 pm 
Subject: FW: Proposed Application for a re zoning and subdivision of Browns Island 193 on MONDAY JANUARY 30TH 

Need you to draft an objection on behalf of my parents (coming to French for more 
than half a century.) 

  
Nature of place. 
  
Why permit this kind of massive subdivision when used previously as a single family-
islands in area all now have massive restrictions (like setback from water) all to 
preserve area.  Why permit this kind of development when all if the regulation 
(setback, etc.) all are to protect and preserve the area…. 
  
  
  
From:   
Sent: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 2:55 PM 
To:  
Subject: Fwd: Proposed Application for a re zoning and subdivision of Browns Island 193 on MONDAY JANUARY 30TH
  
 
Here are the attachments. 
---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From:   
Date: Tue, Jan 24, 2023 at 2:51 PM 
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
Date: Sun, Jan 22, 2023 at 5:22 PM 
Subject: Proposed Application for a re zoning and subdivision of Browns Island 193 on MONDAY JANUARY 30TH 
To:   
CC:   
  

Greetings to Fellow Cottagers & Landowners of the Upper French River, 
  
On behalf of a group of concerned cottagers, we would like to inform you of an 
application for a rezoning and plan of subdivision for Brown Island 193, to create10 lots 
which can accommodate up to 2 dwellings per lot.  A public meeting will be held with the 
Planning Advisory Committee on January 30th .   
  
We are opposed to this application for the following reasons: (see attached PDF 
for more details) 

 The proposed density, scale and character of the subdivision is not in keeping 
with the Upper French River (UFR) and appears to be at odds with policies 
contained in the West Nipissing Official Plan 

 Concern for the cultural heritage landscape, and archaeological values of the 
UFR being adequately protected, conserved or enhanced by the proposed 
subdivision 

 Concern with the sewage carrying capacity of the Island to accommodate 10 lots 
and up to 20 dwelling units 

 Impact the proposed subdivision will have on fisheries, wildlife, areas of natural 
and scientific interest, endangered and threatened species, especially 
considering climate change. 

 Impact the proposed subdivision will have on local and downstream water quality 

  
If you share our concerns, we would ask you to do the following: 
1. Send an email to Melanie Ducharme (see contact information below) PRIOR to 
Monday January 30th, 2023  

  Express your concern/opposition with the Municipality and ask to be included 
and informed on the proposed development File #ZBLA2023/01 

  Please include the attached PDF document expressing specific concerns, and 
any others you may have. 

            Melanie Ducharme 
            Municipal Clerk/Planner for West Nipissing 
            225 Holditch Street, Suite 101 
            Sturgeon Falls, P2B 1T1 
            mducharme@westnipissing.ca 
 
2. Forward this email to any other fellow cottagers and landowners on the UFR whom 
you feel might share your concerns 
 
3. Attend the public meeting on Monday January 30th at 6pm in person or virtually, or by 
using the telephone number and access below: 
            Date and Time: January 30th at 6pm 
            File #: ZBLA2023/01 
            YouTube 
Link:                                                    https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCG6HWMXnA-
RBiH-UdZVCIHg 
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            Meeting 
Link:                                                     https://www.westnipissing.ca/town-
hall/council/council-meetings/ 
            Zoom Meeting Dial-in number & access:          Phone number: 1-647-558-0588 / 
Meeting ID: 265 014 1204 / Participant: # / Meeting Pwd: 654321 
  
  
  
Many thanks, 
Neighbours on the UFR 
  
  

  
  

--  
Amanda Mainville 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Proposed density changes

From:   
Sent: January 29, 2023 11:52 AM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Proposed density changes 
 

Hello Melanie, 

I'm a member of the Hardy Bay Club and am writing to express my concern for the proposed 
development of Burns Island for the following reasons. 

• The proposed density, scale and character of the subdivision is not in keeping with the  upper French 
River and appears to be at odds with policies contained in the West  Nipissing Official Plan (OP), the 
Provincial Policy Statement 2020 (PPS), and the Growth  Plan for Northern Ontario (GPNO).  

The upper French River is characterized by a scattering of cottage lots. This subdivision, however, 
proposes to concentrate 10 lots on a 9.3‐hectare Island and allow for up 20 residential dwellings (i.e., 
2 dwellings per lot).   

Further, the island is surrounded by the French River (waterway) Provincial Park ‐ a  Canadian 
Heritage River, is at the junction of two significant canoe routes, and across  the water from two 
Provincial Park backcountry campsites.   

As such, the proposed subdivision will significantly diminish visitors experience and negatively 
impact tourism and future economic development opportunities.   

The OP, PPS and GPNO advocate for wisely managing change and recognize that long term 
prosperity, environmental health and social well‐being should take precedence  over short‐term 
considerations.   

Thank you. I hope that this request is denied. 

 

 
Victoria Little 

Hardy Bay Club Member 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Brown Island

 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From:  
Sent: January 29, 2023 7:36 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Cc:   
Subject: Brown Island 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
Dear Ms. Ducharme: 
 
I’m writing to add my voice to those opposed to the lot development on Brown Island. 
 
My family, dating back to my great‐grandfather, James Allison, has been enjoying the beauty and recreation the French 
River provides for over 100 years. A fear we’ve shared, especially in the last decade or two, is any development that 
could easily diminish or destroy that enjoyment, including the pollution of its waters and defiling of its unique splendor.
 
We’ve been painfully aware of changes that have already occurred over time, such as the declining fish population due 
to chemical toxicity, or the negative impact of acid rain on area flora.  Efforts to protect wildlife by careful stewardship, 
by Leonard Dokis, for example, have been commendable and demonstrate that resources can be managed 
successfully—if such efforts continue to be pursued. One way to work effectively at this is to prevent further threats to 
these resources. 
 
With this in mind, and in the interest of natural preservation, I strongly urge you to deny the lot development on Brown 
Island. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Bill McCoy, cottager on Island 127 
Sent from my iPhone 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Proposed development on Browns Island

 

From:   
Sent: January 28, 2023 10:52 AM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Proposed development on Browns Island 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Ms. Ducharme,  
 
As a landowner on the French River, I am writing to oppose the rezoning and development of Browns 
Island.  
 
The French River is a regional and national treasure. It should be preserved through limited 
development and the greatest attention to open land and water. To allow this type of development at 
the mouth of the French would be a serious departure from the tradition of protecting the beautiful 
river and islands.  
 
Please do not allow this to happen.  
 
Respectfully,  
 
Tom McCoy  
Cottager on Island #127, French River  
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Proposed Application for a re zoning and subdivision of Browns Island 193 on MONDAY 
JANUARY 30TH

From: Finley McEwen  
Sent: January 29, 2023 8:37 PM 
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

HI Melanie I am a property owner on the Upper French River and am writing to express concern about the above zoning 
application. The application does not appear to comply with applicable zoning or the official plan and the impact of this 
exceedance cant be mitigated due to the unique features of the area.  The increased boat traffic would permanently 
and negatively impact the natural environment and the ability of people to use the river as a canoe route.    Attempts to 
mitigate the impact through restrictions on the type or number of boats to service the proposed new buildings would 
not be enforceable.   Increased noise, visual impact and population density due would cause permanent damage to the 
surrounding area.  In all likelihood, efforts to handle the sewage would involve importing fill which damages the natural 
heritage features and results in the introduction of invasive species.   The Official Plan and zoning provisions should be 
strictly enforced and the application should be rejected.   
 
Thank you 
 
Regards 
 
Finley McEwen 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: File ZBLA2023/01

 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From:  
Sent: January 28, 2023 2:16 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: File ZBLA2023/01 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
 
Dear Ms. Ducharme, 
I am grateful that you are collecting input from French River cottage owners about the above noted file proposal.  As a 
nearby cottage owner who appreciates the French River’s open spaces, quiet, natural beauty and undeveloped areas I 
am very distressed that a development of this size on Brown Island would destroy the character of this treasured 
location.  Environmentally I can only imagine that the impact would similarly be disastrous for the loons, turtles, birds 
and other wildlife of the area. This seems to be a matter of putting commercial endeavors above preserving the existing 
well‐being of a place beloved to many of us who have cottaged on the French River for generations. Though we 
understand change occurs we would appreciate more careful thought be given to the nature of such change that affects 
current owners more than unknown new cottagers on what would be quite a crowded island. 
I hope my concerns, and those of my family who are also worried, will be considered. 
Sincerely, Kathryn Mullane, Island 127 
Sent from my iPhone 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Proposed rezoning of Browns Island 1933, development file #ZBLA2023/01

 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Original message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: 
Date: 2023‐01‐28 10:08 a.m. (GMT‐05:00)  
To: ducharme@westnipissing.ca  
Subject: Proposed rezoning of Browns Island 1933, development file #ZBLA2023/01  

Hi Melanie, 

 My name is Stephen Nicholls, I am a land owner on Fishermans Island WB200‐94. I strongly oppose the rezoning and 
sub‐diving of Browns Island 193. We chose the Upper French River for it's clean water, seclusion, beautiful landscape, 
abundant nature, and thriving fishery and approving the rezoning and subdividing of Browns Island 193 would be a huge 
step backwards on the all reasons why we chose to reside on the Upper French River. It would be a sad day and a 
blemish to the Upper French River which it could never recover from if the proposed rezoning and subdividing of 
Browns Island 193 were to be approved. It's too bad some people care more about lining their pockets than they do the 
beauty of the Upper French River. 

Feel free to contact me if you need more info. 

Thanks 

Stephen Nicholls 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Planning Application for Rezoning of Island #193 Comments

From:   
Sent: January 30, 2023 9:06 AM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Fwd: Planning Application for Rezoning of Island #193 Comments 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Good Morning Melanie, 
I have added 2 paragraphs to my previous submission for the Planning Committee meeting tonight. I have rewritten the 
submission adding the 3rd and 4th paragraphs starting with.  
"The guiding legislation......" 
Would it be possible to use my amended submission or could you add them if you have already processed? 
Thank you 
Sherrill 
 
 

From:  
Sent: Friday, January 27, 2023, 9:17 PM 
To: mducharme@westnipissing.ca <mducharme@westnipissing.ca> 
Subject: Planning Application for Rezoning of Island #193 Comments 
 

Dear Melanie, 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Proposal to Amend the Zoning on Island 193 in the Upper 
French River. I hope to attend the meeting virtually but wish to ensure my comments are heard. 
 
Dear Council of the Municipality of West Nipissing 
 
I am requesting that Council NOT APPROVE the amended zoning designation or the proposed subdivision of 
Island 193 at this time or in its present form.   
 
I've been a cottage owner on the Upper French River for over 40 years. In 1986, it was officially recognized as 
Canada's first Heritage River. In 1989,  the French River Provincial Park was established providing the 
opportunity for all Ontarians to experience the French River, the Voyageur Route to the west and to preserve 
the history and protect the environment for future generations. During discussions when the Park was 
formed, First Nations people were assured that no more land would be released for private ownership. 
Current property owners would be allowed to develop their existing properties recognizing the historical 
significance of the French River and the sensitive nature of the land, water and whole ecosystem.  
 
The guiding legislation for Ontario parks, the Provincial Parks and Conservation Reserves Act 2006 , c.12,s.5(2) 
provides permanent protection for representative ecosystems, biodiversity, and provincially significant 
elements of Ontario's natural and culture heritage. 
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I would argue that a subdivision development of a whole island in an area recognized as part of our natural 
and cultural heritage, would be in contravention of this Act and should not be approved. 
. 
I share the concerns expressed by the Upper French River Cottager's Association and thank them for their 
diligence.  
The number and density of cottage lots proposed for Island #193 is certainly not in keeping with other islands 
on the Upper French River. 
    
Was the intent of the survey to create environmentally sound cottage lots for development or to maximize 
profit?   
 
Two dwellings allowed on each cottage lot of 0.7 Ha doesn't leave any room for wildlife habitat. 
 
Was consideration given to providing a sheltered dock area for each cottage lot during the drawing up of the 
survey?  
Dangerous wind, waves and weather are a part of cottaging on the French River and Lake Nipissing.  
 
The proposed lots would be accessible and could possibly be used 8 months of the year. What services is the 
Municipality of West Nipissing prepared to provide in return for taxes?   Fire protection, Garbage, a 
Dump, Police protection, emergency evacuation????  
 
Most of these islands have l little soil and very limited capacity to handle grey water/waste or accommodate 
septic systems. The transportation of large quantities of granular material by barge and moved across the 
island results in the destruction of native flowers and plants and trees. Even foot traffic is detrimental to tree 
roots. 
 
I request that the Municipality give this proposal a "sober second thought". Impact Assessments requested by 
the Upper French River Cottagers Association would allow them to make knowledgeable decisions.  A 
reduction in the number of lots and a portion of the island set aside for wildlife that have historically used 
Brown's Island might be a good start for 2400517 Ontario Ltd.  
 
Thank You for your consideration, 
Sherrill Richards 
 
Sherrill Richards 
1371 Hemlock Road 
Municipality of Powassan 
Trout Creek, On 
P0H 2L0 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: proposed development

From: Pam Shyatt  
Sent: January 30, 2023 9:58 AM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: proposed development 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

To all who will be impacted by this proposal… 
 
My name is Pamela Moore Shyatt. I am a US citizen, living in South Carolina. 
 
Since 1965, my family has owned a cottage on Island #148 (Cleland Island). 
However, our family roots go back much farther, when in the late 1920’s, my grandfather, William Moore…a high school 
principal from Ohio…purchased our acreage along with the acreage that was subsequently owned by North Bay and Keystone 
Lodge businessman, Bill Kennedy. The Kennedy acreage is now owned by Wendy Kennedy Sadler. 
 
I am 70 years old, and up until Covid, our “camp”, which my father named “Diastole” (the moment when the beating heart is 
at rest), was a yearly, glorious refuge for our family. We now have 5th generation “cottagers”, who are learning to love this 
island as much as those of us who have been blessed to experience it for decades. 
 
Our cottage is non‐hydro, utilizes a “gray‐water” system designed and installed by my father, Douglas Moore, relies on 
propane for cooking, refrigeration, and hot water. We are careful in our garage disposal, and transport recyclables back to our 
homes in the states. The presence of loons…which we don’t experience in the states and which could be negatively impacted 
by such development, is a rare but fragile treasure. We take our stewardship of the island very seriously! 
 
I am letting you know this, because I want to emphasize how very special the French River is to our family, and how a decision 
to subdivide Brown Island could impact the health of the river now, as well as create the precedent allowing for future, 
similar, dense developments to be considered and approved. 
 
Years ago, when the French River was declared a Provincial Park, we noticed an increase of boat traffic and people enjoying 
weekend time on the water. While we do not like having the very large (and noisy) “cigarette boats” passing by, we also know 
that the land and water are protected, due to the vast amount of land that was designated as “crown” land. Cottages are 
sprinkled throughout the river, and many of the cottages have been in the same families for many years. There is a unique 
heritage to the upper French River that cannot be dismissed. 
 
For these, and so many other reasons, I (and my many family members) ask that this proposal be rejected. I would hope that 
the love and care we, as Americans, intend to continue giving back to the French River proves to be an even stronger 
motivation on the part of all the Canadians who consider this area, and its environment, a national treasure worth preserving.

 
Please keep me informed of the outcome of this meeting and any developments going forward. The Moore Family cherishes 
our northern “piece of heaven" and wants to see it’s beauty maintained and enhanced for generations to come. 
Thank you for your consideration… 
 
Pamela Moore Shyatt 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Concerns regarding proposed development File #ZBLA2023/01

From:   
Sent: January 30, 2023 8:09 AM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Cc:   
Subject: Concerns regarding proposed development File #ZBLA2023/01 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Good morning Ms Ducharme,  
 
My name is Catherine Tokarz.  My husband, John, and I own a property on Cleland Island on the Upper French River.   
 
We are opposed to the proposed development on Browns Island for a number of reasons which are outlined and 
summarized in the attached document prepared by the Upper French River Cottagers Association. 
 
We believe strongly that the protection of the heritage and beauty of the area as well as the impact on water quality 
and biodiversity must be thoroughly examined and assessed prior to any decisions being made regarding 
the proposed development.   
 
We are requesting that our views be taken into account by the Planning Advisory Committee for the West Nipissing 
Municipality in its consideration of this proposal and ask that you please keep us informed of any decision of the 
Committee and possible Ontario Land Tribunal Hearing in respect to the proposed zoning amendment. 
 
With kind regards, 
 
Catherine Tokarz 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Proposed development file#ZBLA2023/01

From:   
Sent: January 27, 2023 5:03 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Proposed development file#ZBLA2023/01 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Dear Melanie,  
 
I am writing to indicate that I am opposed to the development of the above file on the Upper French River. I see no 
reason why this property should be rezoned to a proposed 10 lots with 20 structures which would be more fit for an 
semi‐urban environment than a remote heritage river. It should be noted that this proposal is located in an area where 
there are no municipal services, no policing, no fire service, no cell service, no electricity, and no potable water. This 
property is surrounded by crown land and bordering the French River Provincial Park which is home to a vast number of 
significant species including bald eagles which have seen a significant resurgence in the past three years. It may be 
assumed that this development will have a negative impact on these park values through increased recreational use, 
noise, and pollution. 
 
If West Nipissing is going to support subdivision and rezoning then they should be prepared to enforce mitigation of 
construction and increased use. The municipality  must also supply all the necessary services to support the safety of 
new inhabitants including appropriate fire and policing services and telecommunications. 
 
Concerned neighbour, 
 
Daniel Waters  
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Brown Island subdivision opposition

From:   
Sent: January 29, 2023 3:45 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Brown Island subdivision opposition 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Dear Ms. Ducharme,  
 
Please allow me to voice my strong opposition to the proposed 10-lot development on Browns Island. The density 
is worrying for me, and I protest on behalf of the park's endangered species, Blanding's Turtle and Asprey, and all 
other species that make their life in the area and downstream. I don't see how this development proposal is in 
keeping with the established values of the historically important French River Park. 
For years I've watched the madness of the out-of-control development on Lake Rosseau, in Muskoka, which 
famously ignores building codes and environmental restrictions, not to mention the decibels of helicopters, water 
planes, and cigar boats booming across the lake and disturbing the shoreline with their wakes. 
If there must be development on Browns Island, may I please advocate for an environmental assessment and for a 
smaller scale to the development. It seems unreasonable to develop 10 lots on one island. How could this proposed 
development possibly keep the island's natural landscape while considering First Nations, wildlife, and canoeists like 
myself, who has stopped by the island on many occasions and heard the call the the resident Asprey.  
 
Thank you for your time in considering my protest. Is it possible for you to send me updates on this project? 
 
Best Regards,  
 
Barb Webb 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Note In Refute of Brown Island Project

From: martha mullane   
Sent: January 30, 2023 11:13 AM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Note In Refute of Brown Island Project 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

To Municipal Clerk & Other Interested Parties, 
My name is Martha Mullane Loftus and I am a long‐time visitor to the Upper French River.  My family has had 
a (McCoy) cottage on Bragdon Island for more 100 years and my extended family have visited the Upper 
French for a lot longer than that.  We are invested with our whole hearts to the area and are extremely 
dismayed to learn about the projected rezoning and plan for subdivision for Brown Island.   
 
My concerns range from proposed density, scale, and character of the subdivision (which appears to be at 
odds to the West Nipissing Offical Plan) to the concern for the change in cultural heritage, landscape, and 
spirit that this project would bring.  
Most importantly, however, I am VERY concerned about the environmental impact on the area which is 
tantamount to the preservation of this natural habitat.  The impact that this project will have on the fisheries, 
wildlife, local and downstream water qualiy will be irreversable.  And then there is the sewage?!?!?!  I have no 
doubt that you are fully aware of the magical environmental space that the French River is, in great part due 
to the natural habitat and the wildlife, fish and water which all are in great jeopardy with such a huge 
project.  Progress is part of life, but to add such a HUGE development with life‐altering impact on the 
environment feels unethical. 
 
I plead for you to think about the environmental impact that this development will have and hope that you 
seriously consider the ways in which the French River will be altered horrificly with such a massive 
project.  There undoubtedly are pressures that make one think that this project is feasible, but a project of 
this size will permanently change the environment that should be a priority in all of our minds given the ways 
that climate change is already working its ugly curse. 
 
Thank you for your time and energy to thoughtfully consider this proposal. 
Best, 
Martha Mullane Loftus 
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1

Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Proposed Development of Island 193

From: Wendy Kennedy Sadler  
Sent: January 30, 2023 1:43 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Proposed Development of Island 193 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
Ms Ducharme, 
 
I’m writing to you to express my extreme concern that such a proposal for such dense development would be 
considered within the boundaries of the French River Provincial Park and the Canadian Historical River System. The 
campsites across from Island 193 would no longer be have any privacy/seclusion, and certainly not in keeping with the 
Parks mandate. 
 
The Heritage Rivers System has been focusing on reconciliation with local Indigenous people and ensuring access and 
enjoyment of the natural environment that it strives to maintain in its historical state. I’m not sure that this proposal in 
anyway helps achieve this mandate. The very fact that this type of development will be visible and dramatically increase 
water traffic and human impact on the historical Primary Route of both Hudson Bay & the North West Trading Company 
is in contradiction to the Heritage River mandate . 
Please reconsider this irreversible and irresponsible dense development and its numerous direct & indirect negative 
consequences on the land and water for eternity. Approval of this plan would not prove to be a positive legacy. 
 
Please include me on any further notices and/or developments related to this project. 
 
Kindest regards, 
 
 
Wendy  Kennedy Sadler 
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Natasha Liard

Subject: RE: Brown Island 193 Objection

From: Karen Simpson   
Sent: January 30, 2023 12:48 PM 
To: Melanie Ducharme <mducharme@municipality.westnipissing.on.ca> 
Subject: Brown Island 193 Objection 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Good afternoon Melanie,  
 
I know I'm getting this email to you quite late but I hope it's not too late. As a long‐time property owner on the Upper 
French River, I'd like to note my objection to the proposed subdivision of Brown Island 193. The density, scale and 
character is not in keeping with the Upper French River and its designation as a Canadian Heritage River System body of 
water.  
 
As the first Heritage River to be designated, the historical significance of the French River is undeniable. The goals of the 
program for the decade ahead (advancing indigenous reconciliation on canadian heritage rivers, strengthening the 
canadian heritage rivers network, excellence in river management and conservation, and engaging canadians in 
celebrating and stewarding heritage rivers) must be considered hand in hand with development proposals.  
 
I will also note that the Upper French River is home to some of the most well preserved Indigenous pictograph sites in 
the country (https://albinger.files.wordpress.com/2019/08/kennedy‐island‐picto‐article‐nick‐adams.pdf). 
 
Setting the precedent of heavily subdividing recreational waterfront properties on the Upper French River (and the 
severe environmental impact of that) threatens all of the Heritage River goals outlined above. The West Nipissing 
building and planning office provides alternative appropriate ways to build and expand property ownership in a way 
respectful of the Heritage River designation without heavily subdividing natural space. 
 
Please see the attached PDF outlining a number of additional concerns I share with other property owners of the Upper 
French River. I ask that I be kept informed of the ongoing status of the file (#ZBLA2023/01). 
 
Thank you kindly for your consideration, 
Karen 
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15 Janey Avenue     North Bay, Ontario     P1C 1N1     P: (705) 474-5420     F: (705) 474-9793     www.nbmca.ca 

October 26, 2022 
 
Goodridge Goulet Planning & Surveying Ltd.  
490 Main Street East, Unit  
North Bay, ONTARIO P1B 1B5 
 
Attention: Don Goulet 
 
RE: On-site Sewage System Review – Planning Act Proposal - Rene & Rachel Bertrand 

Brown’s Island, Lake Nipissing 
Municipality of West Nipissing (formerly Bertram Township) 
Our File No.: PPOS01-WN-22 

 
The North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority has received and reviewed the above-mentioned 
application for the review of a planning proposal to create a ten-lot subdivision, each lot 
approximately 1ha in size, on Lake Nipissing, on Brown’s Island.  See attached sketch.  The 
following comments are based on Part 8 (Sewage Systems) of Ontario Regulation 332/12 
(Building Code). The investigation undertaken by NBMCA, and any conclusions or 
recommendations made herein reflect NBMCA’s judgment based on information provided on the 
application and a site inspection conducted on October 13, 2022.    
 
When assessing a lot for the placement of a sewage system we must be aware of any constraints 
to development. We are aware of the following constraints: 

• The floodplain of Lake Nipissing (197.25m.a.s.l.).  It is our understanding that, as per the 
Official Plan, development is permitted in the floodplain provided that the minimum 
elevation of all building openings is above the 197.25m CGD elevation. 

• Setbacks for structures (which includes sewage systems) as per the Municipality’s zoning 
by-law 2014-45 are to be18m from the highwater mark.   

 
A site inspection was undertaken on the property on October 13, 2022. There were some areas 
of environmental constraint such as steep slopes (lot # 2 & 10) and floodplain areas (lot 2-3) which 
may impact access; however, it is anticipated that these issues can be avoided or overcome. Lot 
#1 consisted of a cottage, two bunkies and a boathouse.  Sewage System Permit 04-BE-09 was 
issued for this development. There was adequate room to accommodate a replacement Class 4F 
sewage system should one be required in the future. Lots 2-10 were vacant. Each of these lots 
had suitable room to accommodate an initial and a replacement Class 4F sewage system based 
on 3-bedroom single-family dwelling with a floor area of less than 200m² and 20 fixture units. 
Sizing calculations are based on fully raised system with a percolation rate of 50.  
 
Please be advised that prior to any development on the proposed lots a Sewage System Permit 
is required under Ontario Regulation 332/12 of the Ontario Building Code.   
 
It is our understanding that you have not yet submitted a Planning Act application to the 
Municipality of West Nipissing, the approval authority.  The information contained in this letter can 
be used in support of your application to them.  Should there be any development constraints 
identified during the planning process, a re-evaluation of your property may be necessary. 
 

continued on page 2……………. 
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Should you have any questions regarding the above information, please do not hesitate to contact 
me at (705) 471-3010.    Thank you for the opportunity to comment. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
Kristopher Rivard 
Inspector: On-site Sewage Systems  
 
Encl. (2) 
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